

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

A CENTURY OF SERVICE

February 3, 2022

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AMBERROSE MERINO

Division 1

DON WILSON

Division 2

GLORIA DIZMANG

Division 3

KATHY MAC LAREN-GOMEZ

Division 4

VINCENT DINO

Division 5

DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX

General Manager

ALESHIRE & WYNDER LLP

Attorneys





AGENDA FOR A MEETING OF THE PERSONNEL COMMITTEE OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT TO BE HELD AT 2029 EAST AVENUE Q, PALMDALE OR VIA TELECONFERENCE

Committee Members: Kathy Mac Laren-Gomez-Chair, Amberrose Merino

FOR THE PUBLIC: VIA TELECONFERENCE ONLY
DIAL-IN NUMBER: 571-748-4021 ATTENDEE PIN: 367-571-290#
Submit Public Comments at: https://www.gomeet.com/367-571-290

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2022 9:00 a.m.

<u>NOTE:</u> To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting please contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to inform us of your needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution of the agenda packets, are available for public review at the District's office located at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale (Government Code Section 54957.5). Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 for public review of materials.

<u>PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:</u> The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-minutes. Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, comments, or cheering. Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of the District to carry out its meeting will not be permitted, and offenders will be requested to leave the meeting. (PWD Rules and Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.)

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or ordinance to take action on any item.

- 1) Roll call.
- 2) Adoption of agenda.
- 3) Public comments for non-agenda items.
- 4) Action Items: (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any action item as each item is considered by the Committee prior to action being taken.)

- 4.1) Consideration and possible action on approval of minutes of meeting held January 11, 2022.
- 4.2) Consideration and possible action on a recommendation for an additional stipend for Directors opting out of the District's medical insurance plan. (Budget Impact To Be Determined Director Dino/Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia)
- 4.3) Consideration and possible action on a recommendation for approval of updated COVID-19 Prevention Program. (No Budget Impact Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia)
- 5) Reports.
 - 5.1) Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia:
 - a) Personnel policy effects of COVID-19 event.
- 6) Board members' requests for future agenda items.
- 7) Date of next Committee meeting.

is D. La Mneeux

8) Adjournment.

DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,

General Manager

DDL/dd

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: February 3, 2022 **February 8, 2022**

TO: PERSONNEL COMMITTEE Personnel Committee Meeting

FROM: Mrs. Angelica Barragan-Garcia, Human Resources Director

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.2 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A

RECOMMENDATION FOR AN ADDITIONAL STIPEND FOR DIRECTORS OPTING OUT OF THE DISTRICT'S MEDICAL INSURANCE PLAN. (BUDGET IMPACT – TO BE DETERMINED – DIRECTOR DINO/HUMAN RESOURCES

DIRECTOR BARRAGAN-GARCIA)

Recommendation:

Staff has no recommendation on this item.

Alternative Options:

The Board can choose to not extend the monthly stipend of \$650.00 in lieu of opting out of benefits that are available to employees to the Board of Directors.

Impact of Taking No Action:

If there is no action taken, the Board of Directors would continue to elect their medical benefits as normal without the option of receiving a monthly stipend when waiving medical coverage.

Background:

- Eligibility of 457 plan: Per Lincoln and Internal Revenue Code 457, if a person is being paid as a W2 employee, the individual is eligible for a retirement plan as they would be considered an "employee."
- Taxes: For W2 Income tax purposes, the amount that will be contributed to the plan by the District would be considered as compensation for IRS per Internal Revenue Code 3401 and as such would be reported as income for W2 purposes. Either option of cash or deferred compensation would count towards the monthly allowance for Board of Directors' compensation.
- Budget Item: The contribution made would be allocated as compensation reflected under Operational Expenses account "Director's pay."

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement:

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 2 – Organizational Excellence.

This item directly relates to the District's Mission Statement.

Budget:

The budget impact for this item remains to be determined.

Supporting Documents:

None

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: February 3, 2022 **February 8, 2022**

TO: PERSONNEL COMMITTEE Personnel Committee Meeting

FROM: Angelica Barragan-Garcia, Human Resources Director

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.3 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION

ON A RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL OF UPDATED COVID-19 PREVENTION PROGRAM. (NO BUDGET IMPACT – HUMAN

RESOURCES DIRECTOR BARRAGAN-GARCIA)

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Personnel Committee approve the District's COVID-19 Prevention Program.

Background:

Cal OSHA and L.A. County have come out with new requirements for organizations to include in their COVID-19 Prevention Program. The District approved a COVID-19 Plan soon after the virus began to affect the United States and has been updating this Plan based on CDC, California Public Health, and Los Angeles County Public Health updates. The attached COVID-19 Prevention Program includes those updates along with the new recommendations from Cal OSHA as part of the updated Emergency Temporary Standard.

Impact of Taking No Action:

Our current COVID-19 Plan does not have the latest Cal OSHA updates, so it would not be compliant with the new guidelines.

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement:

This work is part of Strategic Plan Initiative No. 2 – Organizational Excellence. This item directly relates to the District's Mission Statement.

Budget:

There is no effect on budget.

Supporting Documents:

• COVID-19 Prevention Plan dated January 26, 2022



COVID-19 PREVENTION PROGRAM ETS (CPP)

Emergency Temporary Standard

This CPP is designed to control employees' exposures to the SARS-CoV-2 virus (severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2) that causes COVID-19 (Coronavirus Disease 2019) that may occur in our workplace.

References

With some exceptions, all employers and places of employment are required to establish and implement an effective written COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) pursuant to the Emergency Temporary Standards in place for COVID-19, California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 8, section 3205(c).

All of the elements that may be required in the following CCR, Title 8 sections:

- o 3205, COVID-19 Prevention
- o 3205.1, Multiple COVID-19 Infection and COVID-19 Outbreaks
- o 3205.2, Major COVID-19 Outbreaks
- 3205.3, Prevention in Employer-Provided Housing
- o 3205.4, COVID-19 Prevention in Employer-Provided Transportation
- The four <u>Additional Considerations</u> provided at the end of this program to see if they are applicable to your workplace.
- Additional guidance and resources are available at www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/



January 2022

Contents

COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP)	3
Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access	3
Authority and Responsibility	3
Basics of Covid-19	3
Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards	4
Employee participation	4
Employee screening	4
Correction of COVID-19 Hazards	4
Control of COVID-19 Hazards	4
Face Coverings	4
Engineering controls	5
Cleaning and disinfecting	5
Hand sanitizing	6
Personal protective equipment (PPE) used to control employees' exposure to COVID-19	7
Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases	7
Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees who had a Close Contact	7
Return-to-Work Criteria	8
Training and Instruction	9
Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards	10
Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections	11
Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases	13
Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster	15
Appendix E: Documentation of Employee COVID-19 Vaccination Status Template	16
Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks	17
COVID-19 testing	17
COVID-19 investigation, review, and hazard correction	17
Major COVID-19 Outbreaks	19
COVID-19 Prevention in Employer-Provided Transportation	20
Assignment of transportation	20
Face coverings and respirators	20
Screening	20
Cleaning and disinfecting	20
Ventilation	21
Hand hygiene	21

COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP)

Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access

It is our policy to:

- Report information about COVID-19 cases and outbreaks at our workplace to the local health department whenever required by law, and provide any related information requested by the local health department.
- Maintain records of the steps taken to implement our written COVID-19 Prevention Program in accordance with section 3203(b).
- Make our written COVID-19 Prevention Program available at the workplace to employees, authorized employee representatives, and to representatives of Cal/OSHA immediately upon request.
- Use the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form to keep a record of and track all COVID-19 cases.

The District will adhere to all CDC, LA county, CDPH, OSHA, and any other relevant guidelines. This plan will be updated as guidelines change and/or get updated. The most relevant guidelines will be followed.

Authority and Responsibility

Safety and Training Technician has overall authority and responsibility for implementing the provisions of this CPP in our workplace. In addition, all managers and supervisors are responsible for implementing and maintaining the CPP in their assigned work areas and for ensuring employees receive answers to questions about the program in a language they understand.

All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all directives, policies and procedures, and assisting in maintaining a safe work environment.

Basics of Covid-19

People with COVID-19 have had a wide range of symptoms reported ranging from mild symptoms to severe illness. Symptoms may appear **2 – 14 days after exposure to the virus**. People with these symptoms may have COVID-19:

- Fever or chills
- Cough
- Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing
- Fatigue
- Muscle or body aches
- Headache

- New loss of taste or smell
- Sore throat
- Congestion or runny nose
- Nausea or vomiting
- Diarrhea

This list does not include all possible symptoms. CDC will continue to update this list as we learn more about COVID-19.

For testing locations visit <u>Testing - Coronavirus COVID-19 Response (ca.gov)</u> at https://covid19.ca.gov/get-tested/

Getting vaccinated against COVID-19 can lower your risk of getting and spreading the virus that causes COVID-19. Vaccines can also help prevent serious illness and death.

Visit: LAC | DPH | COVID-19 Vaccination - How to get vaccinated (lacounty.gov) for vaccination locations at http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/acd/ncorona2019/vaccine/hcwsignup/

Fully Vaccinated includes boosters if eligible per CDC guidelines at the time of exposure.

Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards

We implement the following in our workplace:

- Conduct workplace-specific evaluations using the Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards form.
 - Document the vaccination status of our employees by using **Appendix E: Documentation of Employee COVID-19 Vaccination Status**, which is maintained as a confidential medical record. The district will utilize attestation form to confirm vaccination status.
- Evaluate employees' potential workplace exposures to all persons at, or who may enter, our workplace.
- Develop COVID-19 policies and procedures to respond effectively and immediately to individuals at
 the workplace who are a COVID-19 case to prevent or reduce the risk of transmission in the
 workplace. All employees that are COVID-19 positive are to notify the Safety and Training Technician
 or Human Resource Director as soon as the employee is aware of their positive results or exposure to
 COVID-19.
- Review applicable orders and general and industry-specific guidance from the State of California,
 Cal/ OSHA, and the local health department related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention.
- Evaluate existing COVID-19 prevention controls in our workplace and the need for different or additional controls.
- Conduct periodic inspections using the Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections form as needed to identify and evaluate unhealthy conditions, work practices, and work procedures related to COVID-19 and to ensure compliance with our COVID-19 policies and procedures.
- Employees are encouraged to bring COVID-19 workplace concerns to the attention of a Supervisor, Manager, Safety and Training Technician or Human Resources Director.

Employee participation

Employees and their authorized employees' representatives are encouraged to participate in the identification and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards.

Employee screening

We screen our employees and respond to those with COVID-19 symptoms by: Employees self-screen according to CDPH guidelines. When indoors face covering are to be worn other than the exceptions listed under the section titled "Control of COVID-19 Hazards" subsection "Face Coverings". All visitors including contractors must wear a face covering while inside

Correction of COVID-19 Hazards

Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures are documented on the **Appendix B**: **COVID-19 Inspections** form, and corrected in a timely manner based on the severity of the hazards, as follows:

The Department Manager along with the Safety and Training Technician will evaluate the severity
of the hazard, depending on this evaluation an appropriate time frame for correction will be allotted.
Department Managers will be responsible to ensure the hazard is corrected within the time frame allotted
and the Safety and Training Technician will follow up to review completion.

Control of COVID-19 Hazards

Face Coverings

"Face covering" means a surgical mask, a medical procedure mask, a respirator worn voluntarily, or a tightly woven fabric or non-woven material of at least 2-3 layers (i.e., fabrics that do not let light pass through when

held up to a light source) that completely covers the nose and mouth and is secured to the head with ties, ear loops, or elastic bands that go behind the head. Woven fabric face coverings may not be acceptable in the workplace based on local state and/or federal guidelines.

We provide clean, undamaged face coverings and ensure they are properly worn by all employees when they are indoors or in vehicles, and where required by orders from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH). Disposable face coverings are provided to all staff. Boxes of these face coverings have been placed throughout all PWD buildings including but not limited to the Main Office, NOB, Crew room and Treatment Plant. Face coverings will be kept stocked in the Warehouse and additional boxes can be obtained from the Purchasing Technicians or the Safety and Training Technician.

Employees are required to wear face coverings in our workplace. They may remove them under the following conditions:

- When an employee is alone in a room or a vehicle.
- While eating or drinking at the workplace, provided employees are at least six feet apart and outside air supply to the area, if indoors, has been maximized to the extent feasible.
- When employees are required to wear respirators in accordance with our respirator program.
- Employees who cannot wear face coverings due to a medical or mental health condition or disability,
 or who are hearing-impaired or communicating with a hearing-impaired person. Such employees will
 wear an effective, non-restrictive alternative, such as a face shield with a drape on the bottom, if their
 condition permits it. If their condition does not permit it, then the employee will be at least six feet apart
 from all other persons and either fully vaccinated or tested at least weekly for COVID-19.
- Specific tasks that cannot feasibly be performed with a face covering. This exception is limited to the time in which such tasks are being performed.

Any employee not wearing a required face covering will be at least six feet apart from all other persons while performing the tasks that the face covering is not feasible to be worn.

We will not prevent any employee from wearing a face covering when it is not required unless it would create a safety hazard, such as interfering with the safe operation of equipment.

Face coverings will also be provided to any employee that requests one, regardless of their vaccination status.

Engineering controls

For indoor locations, using Appendix B, we identify and evaluate how to maximize, to the extent feasible, ventilation with outdoor air using the highest filtration efficiency compatible with our existing ventilation system, and whether the use of portable or mounted High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) filtration units, or other air cleaning systems, would reduce the risk of transmission by:

- All forced air filters in the building have been switch to HEPA filters.
- HEPA filters are being exchanged every 3 months.
- In areas such as the Warehouse and Mechanics Bay. A minimum of 1 bay door is to stay open while anyone is present in these areas.

Cleaning and disinfecting

We implement the following cleaning and disinfection measures for frequently touched surfaces and objects, such as doorknobs, elevator buttons, equipment, tools, handrails, handles, controls, phones, headsets, bathroom surfaces, and steering wheels:

- Antibacterial wipes and spray are provided to all employees. Extra products are kept in stock and can be obtained from the Purchasing Technicians upon request.
- Antibacterial wipes and spray are throughout the PWD buildings including but not limited to all Breakrooms, Customer service lobby, Boardroom, Main Office, NOB, Crew room, all common areas Including district's vehicles.
- Employees are encouraged to take time to clean their workstations including vehicles throughout the day including frequently touched common surfaces (telephones, computer equipment, etc.)
- Hired cleaning crew comes each evening to clean and disinfect the workplace.
- Employees are encouraged to not share office supplies such as phones, pens, staplers etc.
- Employees are to wipe down common areas they have used after each use.
- Magazines and other frequently touched materials from common areas have been removed.
- Partitions have been installed in the lobby between each customer window. Partitions have also been placed between each Customer Care desk.

Should we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will implement the following procedures:

The District is currently using germicidal wipes for general clean up and disinfectant spray when it is necessary to disinfect offices or other commonly used areas. Employees are encouraged to wipe down surfaces and objects that they touch throughout the day. Managers, supervisors, and leads are to give the time needed to accomplish disinfecting the workplace. Disinfectant spray and/or wipes are placed all throughout PWD and are available through the Purchasing Technicians when needing to be replaced. Routine approaches for cleaning and disinfection are adequate in these areas, but areas of high traffic should be disinfected twice a day. Personnel cleaning the areas should wear gloves and a mask and should discard them when finished. Hands must be washed or sanitized at the completion of the procedure. When a person with suspected virus is identified and has left the workplace, the supervisor will assign personnel to conduct a thorough cleaning of the workplace where the sick individual was present. Included in the cleaning will be auxiliary places they conduct work, or they have been in contact with, such as counter tops, vaults, common office equipment, locker room areas, District vehicles and equipment. Special attention should be paid to telephones, computer keyboards, the mouse, desktop, steering wheels, and District radios. Doorknobs, sinks, drawer handles, light switches, etc. in the vicinity should also be disinfected. If possible, do not disturb the person's clothing or other fabrics during the cleaning process. Areas that cannot be disinfected, such as electrical equipment, employees will wear masks and gloves while working in the area, or the area will be isolated.

Hand sanitizing

To implement effective hand sanitizing procedures, we:

- Hand washing facilities are available throughout the facilities.
- Wash your hands frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use a hand sanitizer if soap and water are not available.
- Avoid touching your nose, mouth, and eyes.
- Wash your hands or use a hand sanitizer after coughing, sneezing, or blowing your nose. Hand sanitizer is kept in stock and available through the Purchasing Technicians. Wash hands for a minimum of 20 seconds.
- Dispose of tissues in no-touch trash receptacles.
- Cover your coughs and sneezes with a tissue, or cough and sneeze into your elbow or upper sleeve (avoid sneezing or coughing into the hands).
- Avoid shaking hands, the high-five, and the knuckle bump as these can still spread germs. If you do
 have physical contact with others, always wash your hands immediately afterward.
- Hand Sanitizer has been provided to all employees and is also in common work areas.

- Front desk, engineering services and finance personnel have been instructed to use hand sanitizer after handling mail and after each customer transaction.
- Additional hand sanitizer, disinfecting wipes, and tissues have been placed in commonly used areas.
- If wearing gloves, wash your hands after removing them.

Personal protective equipment (PPE) used to control employees' exposure to COVID-19

We evaluate the need for PPE (such as gloves, goggles, and face shields) as required by section 3380, and provide and ensure use of such PPE as needed.

Upon request, we provide respirators for voluntary use to all employees and who are working indoors or in vehicles with more than one person. N-95 masks are kept in stock in our Warehouse. If an N95 is needed it can be picked up from the Purchasing Technicians or the Safety and training Technician. We provide and ensure use of respirators in compliance with section 5144 when deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA.

Testing of symptomatic employees

We make COVID-19 testing available at no cost to all employees who had close contact in the workplace and have COVID-19 symptoms, during employees' paid time.

Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases

We have developed effective procedures to investigate COVID-19 cases that include seeking information from our employees regarding COVID-19 cases, close contacts, test results, and onset of symptoms. This is accomplished by using the **Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases** form.

We also ensure the following is implemented:

Based on information provided by the COVID-19 positive employee, necessary contact tracing will be performed. Employees and/or contractors that are listed as "close contact" (Close contact is define as closer than 6ft for longer than 15mins within a 24hr period) will be contact and advised of exposure.

Our goal is to ensure that we have effective two-way communication with our employees, in a form they can readily understand, and that it includes the following information:

- Employees that are experiencing COVID-19 symptoms should report these symptoms to the Safety and Training Technician or Human Resources. If the employee notifies the Manager or Supervisor of COVID-19 symptoms it is the Supervisor and/or Manager's responsibility to notify the Safety an Training Technician or the Human Resource Director.
- That employees can report symptoms, possible close contacts, and hazards without fear of reprisal.
- How employees with medical or other conditions that put them at increased risk of severe COVID-19 illness can request accommodations by speaking with the HR Director.
- We make COVID-19 testing available at no cost to all employees during working hours when testing is require

Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees who had a Close Contact

Where we have a COVID-19 case or close contact in our workplace, we limit transmission by:

- Ensuring that COVID-19 cases are excluded from the workplace until our return-to-work requirements are
- Excluding employees that had a close contact from the workplace until our return-to-work criteria have been met, with the following exceptions:
 - Employees who were fully vaccinated before the close contact and who do not develop COVID-19 symptoms, provided they wear a face covering inside and outside and maintain six feet of physical distance from others in the workplace for 10 days following the last date of close contact.

- COVID-19 cases who returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained free of COVID-19 symptoms do not need to be excluded from the workplace for 90 days after the initial onset of COVID-19 symptoms, provided they wear a face covering and maintain six feet of distance from others in the workplace for 10 days following the last date of close contact.
- COVID-19 cases who returned to work per our return-to-work criteria who never developed COVID-19 symptoms do not need to be excluded from the workplace for 90 days after the first positive test, provided they wear a face covering and maintain six feet of distance from others in the workplace for 14 days following the last date of close contact.
- If we do not exclude an employee who had a close contact as permitted by the above three exceptions, we will provide the employee with information about any applicable precautions recommended by CDPH for individuals with close contact.
- For employees excluded from work, continuing, and maintaining employees' earnings, wages, seniority, and all other employees' rights and benefits. This will be accomplished by using employee accrued sick leave, and/or any state/federal mandated pay option. If the confirmed exposure or case is considered work related the employee may be entitled to other COVID-19 related benefits under Federal, state or local laws including Workers Compensation.
- Providing employees at the time of exclusion with information on available benefits.

Return-to-Work Criteria

Maintaining adequate staffing levels during a pandemic is accomplished in part by reducing the spread of disease in the workplace. The primary method recommended to achieve this objective is for ill employees to stay home. The reasons for employees reporting to work when they do not feel well are varied. Some employees feel they will be penalized if they do not report to work; others attempt to save their sick time; and some have low sick leave balances. This section will address these issues and provide guidance in managing the human infrastructure as recommended by the CDC, WHO, and the District's policy. Employees are asked to act responsibly, not only for themselves, but for others in the workplace. Employees shall be informed of the following:

Protocols for Employees who are exposed and are NOT up to date on Covid-19 vaccinations:

The date of your exposure is considered day 0. Day 1 is the first full day after your last contact with a person who has had COVID-19. Stay home and away from other people for at least 5 days.

If you've tested positive for COVID-19 regardless of vaccination status:

- COVID-19 cases with symptoms will not return to work until all the following have occurred:
 - At least 24 hours have passed since a fever of 100.4 °F. or higher has resolved without the use of fever-reducing medications, and
 - o COVID-19 symptoms have improved, and
 - At least 5 days have passed since COVID-19 symptoms first appeared. And a second test has been taken on or after day 5 with a negative result.
- COVID-19 cases who tested positive but never developed symptoms will not return to work until a
 minimum of 5 days have passed since the date of specimen collection of their first positive COVID-19
 test. An additional test will need to be taken on or after day 5 and come back negative.
- A negative COVID-19 test will not be required for an employee to return to work once the requirements for "cases with symptoms" or "cases who tested positive but never developed symptoms" (above) have been met.
- Persons who had a close contact may return to work as follows:
 - Close contact but never developed symptoms: after 5 days with a negative covid test taken on or after day 5 unless either of the following exceptions apply:
 - Ten days have passed since the last known close contact and the person wears a face covering and maintains six feet of physical distance from others while at the workplace for 10 days following the last date of close contact.
 - Five days have passed since the last known close contact; the person tested negative for COVID-19 using a COVID-19 test with the specimen taken at least five days after the last

known close contact; and the person wears a face covering and maintains six feet of physical distance from others while at the workplace for 10 days following the last date of close contact.

- Close contact with symptoms: when the "COVID-19 cases with symptoms" criteria (above) have been met.
- If an order to isolate, quarantine, or exclude an employee is issued by a local or state health official, the employee will not return to work until the period of isolation or quarantine is completed or the order is lifted.

Training and Instruction

We provide effective employee training and instruction that includes:

- Our COVID-19 policies and procedures to protect employees from COVID-19 hazards, and how to participate in the identification and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards.
- Information regarding COVID-19-related benefits (including mandated sick and vaccination leave) to which the employee may be entitled under applicable federal, state, or local laws.
- The fact that:
 - o COVID-19 is an infectious disease that can be spread through the air.
 - COVID-19 may be transmitted when a person touches a contaminated object and then touches their eyes, nose, or mouth.
 - An infectious person may have no symptoms.
- The fact that particles containing the virus can travel more than six feet, especially indoors, so physical distancing, face coverings, increased ventilation indoors, and respiratory protection decrease the spread of COVID-19 and are most effective when used in combination.
- The right of employees that are not fully vaccinated to request a respirator for voluntary use, without fear of retaliation, and our policies for providing the respirators. Employees voluntarily using respirators will be trained according to section 5144(c)(2) requirements:
 - How to properly wear them.
 - How to perform a seal check according to the manufacturer's instructions each time a respirator is worn, and the fact that facial hair can interfere with a seal.
- The importance of frequent hand washing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds and using hand sanitizer when employees do not have immediate access to a sink or hand washing facility, and that hand sanitizer does not work if the hands are soiled.
- Proper use of face coverings and the fact that face coverings are not respiratory protective equipment.
 Since COVID-19 is an airborne disease, N95s and more protective respirators protect the users from airborne disease, while face coverings primarily protect people around the user.
 - The conditions where face coverings musts be worn at the workplace.
 - That face coverings are additionally recommended outdoors for people who are not fully vaccinated
 if six feet of distance cannot be maintained.
 - Employees can request face coverings and can wear them at work regardless of vaccination status and without fear of retaliation.
- COVID-19 symptoms, and the importance of obtaining a COVID-19 test and not coming to work if the employee has COVID-19 symptoms.
- Information on our COVID-19 policies and how to access COVID-19 testing and vaccination, and the fact that vaccination is effective at preventing COVID-19, protecting against both transmission and serious illness or death.
- Covid-19 training is done via Vector Solutions, all information regarding the district's Covid -19 policy and procedure are directly relayed to employees via in person meetings, emails and Employee Buzz.
 All policy and procedures are available to all employees and stored on the Z drive.

Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster will be used to document this training.

Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards

All persons, regardless of symptoms or negative COVID-19 test results, will be considered potentially infectious. Particular attention will be paid to areas where people may congregate or come in contact with one another, regardless of whether employees are performing an assigned work task or not. For example: meetings, trainings, entrances, bathrooms, hallways, aisles, walkways, elevators, break or eating areas, cool-down areas, and waiting areas.

Evaluation of potential workplace exposure will be to all persons at the workplace or who may enter the workplace, including coworkers, employees of other entities, members of the public, customers or clients, and independent contractors. We will consider how employees and other persons enter, leave, and travel through the workplace, in addition to addressing stationary work.

Person conducting the evaluation: [enter name(s)]

Date: [enter date]

Name(s) of employee and authorized employee representative that participated: [enter name(s)]

Interaction, area, activity, work task, process, equipment and material that potentially exposes employees to COVID-19 hazards	Places and times	Potential for COVID-19 exposures and employees affected, including members of the public and employees of other employers	Existing and/or additional COVID-19 prevention controls

Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections

[This form is only intended to get you started. Review the information available at www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/coronavirus/ for additional guidance on what to regularly inspect for, including issues that may be more pertinent to your particular type of workplace. You will need to modify the form accordingly.]

Date: [enter date]

Name of person conducting the inspection: [enter names]

Work location evaluated: [enter information]

Exposure Controls	Status	Person Assigned to Correct	Date Corrected
Engineering			
Ventilation* (amount of fresh air and filtration maximized)			
Additional room air filtration*			
[Add any additional controls your workplace is using]			
Administrative			
Surface cleaning and disinfection (frequently enough and adequate supplies)			
Hand washing facilities (adequate numbers and supplies)			
Disinfecting and hand sanitizing solutions being used according to manufacturer instructions			
[Add any additional controls your workplace is using]			

Exposure Controls	Status	Person Assigned to Correct	Date Corrected
[Add any additional controls your workplace is using]			
PPE (not shared, available and being worn)			
Face coverings (cleaned sufficiently often)			
Gloves			
Face shields/goggles			
Respiratory protection			
[Add any additional controls your workplace is using]			

^{*}Identify and evaluate how to maximize ventilation with outdoor air; the highest level of filtration efficiency compatible with the existing ventilation system; and whether the use of portable or mounted HEPA filtration units, or other air cleaning systems, would reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. Review applicable orders and guidance from the State of California and local health departments related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention have been reviewed, including the CDPH Interim Guidance for Ventilation, Filtrations, and Air Quality in Indoor Environments and information specific to your industry, location, and operations. We maximize the quantity of outside air provided to the extent feasible, except when the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Air Quality Index is greater than 100 for any pollutant or if opening windows or maximizing outdoor air by other means would cause a hazard to employees, for instance from excessive heat or cold.

Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases

All personal identifying information of COVID-19 cases or persons with COVID-19 symptoms, and any employee required medical records will be kept confidential unless disclosure is required or permitted by law. Un-redacted information on COVID-19 cases will be provided to the local health department, CDPH, Cal/OSHA, the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) immediately upon request, and when required by law.

Date: [enter date COVID-19 case – suspected/confirmed - became known to the employer]

Name of person conducting the investigation: [enter name]

Name of COVID-19 case (employee or non-employee*) and contact information: [enter information]

Occupation (if non-employee*, why they were in the workplace): [enter information]

*If we are made aware of a non-employee COVID-19 case in our workplace

Names of employees/representatives involved in the investigation: [enter information]

Date investigation was initiated: [enter information]

Locations where the COVID-19 case was present in the workplace during the high-risk exposure period, and activities being performed: [enter information]

Date and time the COVID-19 case was last present and excluded from the workplace: [enter information]

Date of the positive or negative test and/or diagnosis: [enter information]

Date the case first had one or more COVID-19 symptoms, if any: [enter information]

Information received regarding COVID-19 test results and onset of symptoms (attach documentation): [enter information]

Summary determination of who may have had a close contact with the COVID-19 case during the high-risk exposure period. Attach additional information, including:

- The names of those found to be in close contact.
- Their vaccination status.
- When testing was offered, including the results and the names of those that were exempt fromtesting because:
 - They returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained symptom free for 90days (or a different period than 90 days if it is required by a CDPH regulation or order) or, for those that never developed symptoms, for 90 days (or a different period than 90 days if it is required by a CDPH regulation or order) after the initial positive test.
- The names of those close contacts that were excluded per our Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees who had a Close Contact requirements.
- The names of those close contacts exempt from exclusion requirements because:
 - They were fully vaccinated before the close contact and did not develop COVID-19 symptoms, and are required to wear a face covering and maintain six feet of distance from others at the workplace for 14 days following the last date of close contact.
 - They returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained symptom free, and are required to wear a face covering and maintain six feet of physical distance from others at the workplace for 14 days following the last date of close contact.

• They never developed symptoms and are required to wear a face covering and maintain six feet of physical distance from others at the workplace for 14 days following the last date of close contact.

[enter information]

Notice given (within one business day, in a way that does not reveal any personal identifying information of the COVID-19 case) of the potential COVID-19 exposure to:

- 1. All employees who were on the premises at the same worksite as the COVID-19 case during the high-risk exposure period
- 2. Their authorized representatives (If applicable, the notice required by Labor Code section 6409.6(a) (2) and (c))

Names of employees that were notified:	Names of their authorized representatives:	Date

Independent contractors and other employers on the premises at the same worksite as the COVID-19 case during the high-risk exposure period.

Names of individuals that were notified:	Date

What were the workplace conditions that could have contributed to the risk of COVID-19 exposure? **[enter information]**

What could be done to reduce exposure to COVID-19? **[enter information]**

Was local health department notified? Date? [enter information]

Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster

Date: [enter date]

Person that conducted the training: [enter name(s)]

Employee Name	Signature

Appendix E: Documentation of Employee COVID-19 Vaccination Status Template

Employee Name	Fully or Partially Vaccinated ¹	Method of Documentation ²

¹ Update, accordingly and maintain as confidential medical record. T8CCR section 3205(b)(9) definition of "fully vaccinated" will be applied.

² Acceptable options include:

[•] Employees provide proof of vaccination (vaccine card, image of vaccine card or health care documentshowing vaccination status) and employer maintains a copy.

[•] Employees provide proof of vaccination. The employer maintains a record of the employees who presentedproof, but not the vaccine record itself.

[•] Employees self-attest to vaccination status and employer maintains a record of who self-attests.

Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks

To be followed **if three or more employee** COVID-19 cases within an exposed group visited the workplace during their high-risk exposure period at any timeduring a 14-day period. Reference section 3205.1 for details.

This addendum will stay in effect until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in the exposed group for a 14-day period.

COVID-19 testing

We provide COVID-19 testing at no cost to all employees, during paid time, in our exposed group except for:

- Employees who were not present during the relevant 14-day period.
- COVID-19 cases who did not develop symptoms after returning to work pursuant to our return-towork criteria, no testing is required for 90 days after the initial onset of symptoms or, for COVID-19 cases who never developed symptoms, 90 days after the first positive test.

COVID-19 testing consists of the following:

- All employees in our exposed group are immediately tested and then again one week later. Negative COVID-19 test results of employees with COVID-19 exposure will not impact the duration of any quarantine, isolation, or exclusion period required by, or orders issued by, the local health department.
- After the first two COVID-19 tests, we continue to provide COVID-19 testing once a week of
 employees in the exposed group who remain at the workplace, or more frequently if recommendedby
 the local health department, until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in our workplace for a
 14-day period.
- We provide additional testing when deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA.

We continue to comply with the applicable elements of our CPP, as well as the following:

- 1. Employees in the exposed group wear face coverings when indoors, or when outdoors and less than six feet apart (unless one of the face-covering exceptions indicated in our CPP apply).
- 2. We give notice to employees in the exposed group of their right to request a respirator for voluntary use if they are not fully vaccinated.
- 3. We evaluate whether to implement physical distancing of at least six feet between persons, or where six feet of physical distancing is not feasible, the need for use of cleanable solid partitions of sufficient size to reduce COVID-19 transmission.

COVID-19 investigation, review, and hazard correction

We immediately perform a review of potentially relevant COVID-19 policies, procedures, and controls and implement changes as needed to prevent further spread of COVID-19.

The investigation and review is documented and includes:

- Investigation of new or unabated COVID-19 hazards including:
 - Our leave policies and practices and whether employees are discouraged from remaining home when sick.
 - Our COVID-19 testing policies.
 - Insufficient outdoor air.
 - Insufficient air filtration.
 - Lack of physical distancing.

- Updating the review:
 - Every thirty days that the outbreak continues.
 - In response to new information or to new or previously unrecognized COVID-19 hazards.
 - When otherwise necessary.
- Implementing changes to reduce the transmission of COVID-19 based on the investigation and review.
 We consider:
 - Moving indoor tasks outdoors or having them performed remotely.
 - Increasing outdoor air supply when work is done indoors.
 - Improving air filtration.
 - Increasing physical distancing as much as feasible.
 - Requiring respiratory protection in compliance with section 5144.
 - Buildings or structures with mechanical ventilation

We will filter recirculated air with Minimum Efficiency Reporting Value (MERV) 13 or higher efficiency filters, if compatible with the ventilation system. If MERV-13 or higher filters are not compatible, we will use filters with the highest compatible filtering efficiency. We will also evaluate whether portable or mounted High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) filtration units or other air cleaning systems would reduce the risk of transmission and, if so, implement their use to the degree feasible.

Major COVID-19 Outbreaks

To be followed should **20 or more employee** COVID-19 cases inan exposed group visit your workplace during the high-risk exposure period within a 30-day period. Reference section 3205.2 for details.

This addendum will stay in effect until there are fewer than three COVID-19 cases detected in our exposed group for a 14-day period.

We continue to comply with the Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks addendum, except that the COVID-19 testing, regardless of vaccination status, is made available to all employees in the exposed group twice a week, or more frequently if recommended by the local health department.

In addition to complying with our CPP and Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks addendum, we also:

- Provide employees in the exposed group with respirators for voluntary use in compliance with section 5144(c)(2) and determine the need for a respiratory protection program or changes to an existing respiratory protection program under section 5144 to address COVID-19 hazards.
- Separate by six feet (except where we can demonstrate that six feet of separation is not feasible and there is momentary exposure while persons are in movement) any employees in the exposed group who are not wearing respirators required by us and used in compliance with section 5144. When it is not feasible to maintain a distance of at least six feet, individuals are as far apart as feasible. The District uses the following methods of physical distancing: telework or other remote work arrangements; reducing the number of persons in an area at one time, including visitors; visual cues such as signs and floor markings to indicate where employees and others should be located or their direction and path of travel; staggered arrival, departure, work, and break times; and adjusted work processes or procedures, such as reducing production speed, to allow greater distance between employees.
- Install cleanable solid partitions that effectively reduce transmission between the employee and other
 persons at workstations where an employee in the exposed group is assigned to work for an extended
 period, such as cash registers, desks, and production line stations, and where the physical distancing
 requirement (described above) is not always maintained.
- Evaluate whether to halt some or all operations at the workplace until COVID-19 hazards have been corrected.
- Implement any other control measures deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA.

COVID-19 Prevention in Employer-Provided Transportation

To be followed for **motor vehicle transportation**, which is any transportation of an employee, during the course and scope of employment, including transportation to and from different workplaces, jobsites, delivery sites, buildings, stores, facilities, and agricultural fields provided, arranged for, or secured by an **employer**, regardless of the travel distance or duration involved. Reference section <u>3205.4</u> for details.

This addendum does not apply:

- If the driver and all passengers are from the same household outside of work, such as family members, or if the driver is alone in the vehicle.
- To employer-provided transportation when necessary for emergency response, including firefighting, rescue, and evacuation, and support activities directly aiding response such asutilities, communications, and medical operations.
- To employees with occupational exposure as defined by section 5199.
- To vehicles in which all employees are fully vaccinated.
- To public transportation

Assignment of transportation

To the extent feasible, we reduce exposure to COVID-19 hazards by assigning employees sharing vehicles to distinct groups and ensuring that each group remains separate from other such groups during transportation, during work activities, and in employer-provided housing. We prioritize shared transportation assignments in the following order:

- Employees residing in the same housing unit are transported in the same vehicle.
- Employees working in the same crew or workplace are transported in the same vehicle.
- Employees who do not share the same household, work crew or workplace are transported in the same vehicle only when no other transportation alternatives are feasible.

Face coverings and respirators

We ensure that the:

- Face covering requirements of our CPP Face Coverings are followed for employees waiting for transportation, if applicable.
- All employees are provided with a face covering, which must be wornunless an exception under our CPP Face Coverings applies.
- Upon request, we provide respirators for voluntary use in compliance with subsection 5144(c)(2) to all employees in the vehicle who are not fully vaccinated.

Screening

We develop, implement, and maintain effective procedures for screening and excluding drivers and riders with COVID-19 symptoms prior to boarding shared transportation. Employees do their own screening and are not to come to work with any symptoms or fever within the past 24hrs. Employees have been advised to take separate vehicles to job sites. When this is not possible employees are to wear N95 masks.

Cleaning and disinfecting

We ensure that:

All high-contact surfaces (door handles, seatbelt buckles, armrests, etc.) used by passengers are
cleaned to prevent the spread of COVID-19 and are cleaned and disinfected if used by a COVID-19
case during the high-risk exposure period, when the surface will be used by another employee within
24 hours of the COVID-19 case. All vehicles have disinfectant wipes and/or spray in them. These

products area also kept in stock and can be picked up from the Purchasing Technicians. Vehicles that are shared are to be disinfected daily or prior to changing drivers.

- All high-contact surfaces used by drivers, such as the steering wheel, armrests, seatbelt buckles, door handles and shifter, are cleaned to prevent the spread of COVID-19 between different driver and are disinfected after use by a COVID-19 case during the high-risk exposure period, if the surface will be used by another employee within 24 hours of the COVID-19 case. Safety Technician will assist with process as needed.
- We provide sanitizing materials, training on how to use them properly, and ensure they are kept in adequate supply.

Ventilation

We ensure that vehicle windows are kept open, and the ventilation system is set to maximize outdoor air and not set to recirculate air. Windows do not have to be kept open if one or more of the following conditions exist:

- The vehicle has functioning air conditioning in use and excessive outdoor heat would create a hazard to employees.
- The vehicle has functioning heating in use and excessive outdoor cold would create a hazard to employees.
- Protection is needed from weather conditions; such as rain or snow.
- The vehicle has a cabin air filter in use and the U.S. EPA Air Quality Index for any pollutant is greater than 100.

Hand hygiene

We provide hand sanitizer in each vehicle and ensure that all drivers and riders sanitize their hands before entering and exiting the vehicle. Hand sanitizers with methyl alcohol are prohibited.